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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
FARLEY NUCLEAR POWER PLANT UNITS 1 and 2 

Nuclear Regulatory Commission Inspection Report 50-348,364/99-07 

This integrated inspection to assure public health and safety included aspects of licensee 
operations, maintenance, engineering, and plant support. The report covers a six-week period 

* of routine resident inspection, and specialist inspections of the radiation protection program, 
flow accelerated corrosion program, and the steam generator replacement project design 
changes and related safety evaluations.  

Operations 

* The NRC identified two additional examples of inadequate 10 CFR 50.59 
screening evaluations for system operating procedures in which a written safety 
evaluation was not completed. These issues were dispositioned as additional 
examples of a previous non-cited violation (Section 01.2).  

* The licensee violated Technical Specification 3.3.3.1 by not starting the Control 
Room Emergency Ventilation System within one hour after making Radiation 
Monitors RE 35A&B inoperable. This NRC identified violation is being treated as 
a non-cited violation (Section 01.3).  

Engineering 

* The licensee had adequately reviewed Generic Letter 98-02 and Information 
Notice 95-03 and appropriate controls were in place to prevent Reactor Coolant 
System draindown during shutdown and common-mode failures (Section E2.1).
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REPORT DETAILS 

Summary of Plant Status 

Unit I operated at or near full power for the period.  

Unit 2 operated in an end of cycle coast down mode until October 16 when the unit was 
shutdown for a scheduled refueling outage.  

I. Operations 

01 Conduct of Operations 

01.1 Routine Observations of Control Room Operations (60710)(71707) 

The inspectors observed licensed control room operator and non-licensed operator 
performance during the period. Operator attentiveness to annunciator alarms and 
response to changing plant conditions were prompt. This was exhibited when operators 
quickly identified a small steam leak in containment. Operator performance during the 
Unit 2 shutdown, cooldown, and mid-loop operations demonstrated strong procedure 
compliance and management oversight. Drain down activities associated with the 
reactor coolant system (RCS) were performed with risk in mind. Decay heat removal 
performance and availability were continually monitored. The inspectors observed fuel 
movements during core off-load and noted that they were effectively and safely 
accomplished in accordance with requirements. Personnel were knowledgeable 
regarding their stations and responsibilities.  

01.2 Inadequate 1OCFR50.59 Reviews for System Operating Procedure (SOP) Changes 

a. Inspection Scope (71707) 

The inspectors identified two examples of inadequate 10 CFR 50.59 evaluations 
associated with revising SOPs. Non-cited violation (NCV) 50-348, 364/99-06-01, 
Inadequate 10 CFR 50.59 Evaluation Allowed Propping Open Watertight Doors, was 
also related to revision of a SOP.  

b. Observations and Findings 

In December 1997, the licensee issued Revision (Rev.) 35 to FNP-1-SOP-58.0, 
"Auxiliary Building HVAC System, "which incorporated guidance to supply temporary 
ventilation to a Residual Heat Removal (RHR) pump room when the room cooler was 
removed from service. The inspectors found that the procedure allowed running 
temporary ventilation through a penetration room boundary door. With the penetration 
room boundary door open, the Penetration Room Filtration (PRF) system would not have 
been able to perform its design function. Licensee personnel stated that the intent was 
to limit the use of temporary ventilation to unit operating Mode 5 and Mode 6 when the 
PRF system was not required. However, neither the procedure change package nor the 
10 CFR 50.59 screening evaluation indicated a unit operating Mode limitation. Because
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the 10 CFR 50.59 screening evaluation was inadequate, the licensee failed to perform a 
written safety evaluation for the procedure change.  

The licensee promptly issued a change to SOP-58.0 specifying that temporary ventilation 
to the RHR pump rooms was only allowed in Modes 5 and 6. A review of plant records 
showed that temporary ventilation was not used for the RHR pumps, therefore, the PRF 
system was able to perform its design function. Consistent with Section VII.B.I.a. of the 
NRC Enforcement Policy, this NRC identified Severity Level IV violation is being treated 
as an NCV and will be referenced as an additional example of NCV 50-348, 364/99-06
01. This NCV is in the licensees corrective action program as Occurrence Report (OR) 
1-99-703.  

The inspectors reviewed past revisions to FNP-0-SOP-56.0, "Control Room HVAC 
System," in response to the licensee operating the Control Room (CR) at a negative 
pressure. Final Safety Analysis Report (FSAR) Sections 9.4.1.2, 9.4.1.3, and 12.2.2 
stated that the CR was maintained at a positive pressure during normal and emergency 
operation. Rev. 0 through Rev. 10 of SOP-56.0 required securing the control room utility 
exhaust fan when removing the computer room Heating, Ventilation, and Air 
Conditioning (HVAC) system from service. Securing the control room utility exhaust fan 
would prevent operating the CR at a negative pressure. In March 1984, the licensee 
issued Temporary Change Notice (TCN) 10A to SOP-56.0 that removed the guidance to 
secure the control room utility exhaust fan. Consequently, the control room was 
operated at a negative pressure, contrary to the FSAR. Because the 10 CFR 50.59 
screening evaluation was inadequate, the licensee failed to perform a written safety 
evaluation.  

Although the CR was operated at a negative pressure, there was no effect on CR 
habitability during emergency or post-accident conditions. Consistent with Section 
VII.B.I.a. of the NRC Enforcement Policy, this NRC identified Severity Level IV violation 
is being treated as an NCV and will be referenced as an additional example of NCV 50
348, 364/99-06-01. This NCV is in the licensees corrective action program as OR 1-99
751.  

c. Conclusions 

Incorrect 10 CFR 50.59 screening evaluations resulted in changes to the plant 
procedures and system operation without the required written safety evaluation. The 
licensee promptly restored compliance and issued ORs 1-99-703 and 1-99-751 to 
develop additional corrective actions. These issues were dispositioned as additional 
examples of NCV 50-348, 364/99-06-01.
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01.3 Control Room Habitability System Walkdown and Interfaces 

a. Inspection Scope (71707) (37551) 

Inspectors reviewed the procedures and operation of the CR Habitability systems and its 
associated interfaces.  

b. Observations and Findings 

Due to Auxiliary Building roof repairs, the computer room ventilation system had been 
secured for extended time periods over the last few months. Because Radiation 
Monitors RE 35A&B were located in the intake to the computer room HVAC system, the 
inspectors questioned if RE 35A&B were monitoring a representative air sample when 
the computer room HVAC system was removed from service. These radiation monitors 
were required to be operable per TS 3.3.3.1, Table 3.3-6, item 2.c. In a high radiation 
condition these radiation monitors actuated the following: secure the Computer room 
ventilation system; secure the Control Room Utility Exhaust Fan; realign the Technical 
Support Center ventilation in the recirculation mode; and, warned operators to start the 
CR Emergency Ventilation System (CREVS).  

On October 26, the licensee concluded that RE 35A&B were operable based on Request 
for Engineering Assistance (REA) 98-1906. The operability determination was based on 
RE 35A&B continuing to sample the outside air when the computer room ventilation 
intake dampers were closed as shown in piping and instrument drawing (P&ID) 
D205012. The inspectors walked down the computer room HVAC system and 
determined that P&ID D205012 was incorrect. When the computer room HVAC system 
was removed from service, RE 35A&B were isolated from the outside air rendering them 
inoperable. With RE 35A&B inoperable, T S 3.3.3.1, Table 3.3-1, item 2.c action 27, 
requires that the CREVS be started within one hour. During the last four months the 
computer room HVAC system had been secured numerous times for extended periods 
and the CREVS had not been started in accordance with TS.  

The licensee determined that personnel error during the initial construction and validation 
process resulted in the inaccurate P&ID. The inspectors noted that the licensee had 
several opportunities to identify and correct the inaccurate P&ID during computer room 
HVAC system walkdown and evaluations. This NRC identified Severity Level IV 
Violation is being treated as an NCV consistent with Section VII.B.1.a. of the NRC 
Enforcement Policy. This is identified as NCV 50-3481364-99-07-01,Control Room 
Isolation Radiation Monitor Technical Specification 3.3.3.1 Violation Due to Personnel 
Error and Inaccurate Drawing. The licensee initiated OR 1-99-0729 to document this 
violation and track the corrective actions. An uAs Built Noticen was issued to correct the 
inaccurate P&ID.
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c. Conclusion 

The licensee violated TS 3.3.3.1 by not starting the CREVS within one hour of making 
Radiation Monitors RE 35A&B inoperable.  

08 Miscellaneous Operations Issues (92901) 

08.1 (Closed) I FI 50-348, 364/97-300-01: Failure to Adequately Train Operators on the Use of 
Procedure Place Keeping Aids 

The NRC conducted two initial license examinations since this item was opened. No 
deficiencies were observed during the use of place keeping aids.  

II. Maintenance 

M1 Conduct of Maintenance 

M1.1 General Comments (61726 and 62707) 

The inspectors observed or reviewed portions of the selected maintenance and 
surveillance test activities in progress. This included Unit 2 outage related maintenance 
activities on the primary and secondary systems. For those maintenance and 
surveillance activities observed or reviewed, the inspectors determined that the activities 
were-conducted in a satisfactory manner and that the work was properly performed in 
accordance with approved maintenance work orders and TS.  

M1.2 Flow Accelerated Corrosion (FAC) Program (49001) 

The inspectors evaluated the licensee's Flow Accelerated Corrosion (FAC) Program 
and the program's implementation. Specific inspection activities included: review of the 
written practice; detailed review of the computer model for all three main feedwater trains 
for both units in the main steam valve rooms and the containment; review of a sample of 
past examination data; review of samples of pipe wall thinning data evaluation for the 
Unit I fall 1998 outage; and walkdown inspection of the Unit I feedwater system from the 
high pressure turbine to the main steam valve room. Observations were compared with 
the licensee's written procedures and applicable industry guidance. Based on the 
inspectors reviews and observations, FAC inspections were conducted and evaluated in 
accordance with appropriate procedures and industry guidelines. The inspectors 
concluded that the licensee has implemented an effective program to maintain high 
energy carbon steel piping systems within acceptable wall thickness limits.
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III. Engineering 

El Conduct of Engineering 

E1.1 Unit I Steam Generator Replacement Project (SGRP) 

a. Inspection Scope (50001) 

The inspectors reviewed the 10 CFR 50.59 safety evaluation and the preparation for the 
Unit I steam generator replacement (SGR). The review included the Quality Assurance 
(QA) program; controls for contractor oversight and interface; plans for identifying, 
tracking, and resolving nonconformances; and an impact evaluation for Unit 2 operation 
during the Unit I SGR. In addition, the inspectors reviewed Quality Control (QC) 
inspection records for steam generators (SGs) currently being manufactured. The 
inspectors also toured the heavy load pathway that will be used during transportation of 
the SGs.  

b. Observations and Findings 

The inspectors reviewed the 10 CFR 50.59 safety evaluation and the preparation of the 
engineering activities for the SGRP and concluded that they are adequate. The 
inspectors discussed the licensee's QA program for the SGRP with Safety Audit and 
Engineering Review (SAER) personnel. SAER was preparing procedure FSAER-AP-14, 
"Steam Generator Replacement Audits," and planning guide FSAER-PG-39, "Steam 
Generator Replacement,3 which will be used to audit Bechtel Power Corporation 
activities. The licensee decided to include activities to be performed by the other 
contractors in the audit. The inspectors discussed OC inspections performed during the 
SG manufacturing process. The licensee's QA inspectors observed the shop activities, 
performed the QC inspections, and issued deficiency reports. The inspectors reviewed 
samples of the reports generated by the licensee's inspectors and determined that they 
were acceptable.  

The inspectors toured the heavy load pathway which will be used to transport the SGs.  
The inspectors verified that the necessary route drawings and the impact evaluation for 
underground piping and components had been completed.  

c. Conclusions 

The licensee was effectively preparing for the Unit I steam generator replacement.
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E2 Engineering Support of Facilities and Equipment 

E2.1 Generic Letter (GL) 98-02, Draindown During Shutdown and Common-Mode Failure 
(Temporary Instruction (TI) 2515/142) 

Based on a review of GL 98-02 and Information Notice (IN) 95-03, "Loss of Reactor 
.Coolant Inventory and Partial Loss of Emergency Mitigation Functions While in a 
Shutdown Condition," the licensee determined the plant was vulnerable to the type of 
event described. The inspectors reviewed the licensee's administrative controls to 
prevent RCS draindown including control of locked valves and operating procedures 
used during shutdown conditions. The inspectors also reviewed operator training on 
RCS draindown. The inspectors verified that, although the system design was 
vulnerable to the event described in the GL, the licensee's procedure does not allow the 
system lineup for equalizing the boron concentration in the RHR system. Also, the 
licensee was implementing recurring training on this issue. The inspector concluded that 
the licensee had adequately reviewed the IN and GL and appropriate controls were in 
place to prevent this event.  

.E2.2 Review of Year 2000 (Y2K) Readiness for Unit 2 Digital Electro-Hydraulic (DEHC) 
System (TI 2515/141, Rev. 1) 

The inspectors used TI 2515/141, Rev. 1, to perform the review. Design Change 
Package (DCP) 97-2-9298, performed on the Unit 2 DEHC system, included a 
microprocessor update; hardware, firmware, and software replacements; and, Y2K and 
acceptance testing activities. The inspectors reviewed management planning, 
documentation, implementation planning, assessment, remediation activities, testing and 
validation, notification activities, and contingency planning. The completed DCP 
documentation was verified to be complete, and the infield installation was checked.  
Testing results were also verified to have been completed, and determined to be 
acceptable by licensee personnel. The inspector concluded that the licensee had 
completed the Y2K upgrade activities for the Unit 2 DEHC system, and this was the final 
open item. Previous NRC reviews of Y2K readiness were documented in IR 99-03. This 
completed the licensee's Y2K activities for both units.  

IV. Plant Support 

R1 Radiological Protection and Chemistry Controls 

R1.1 Tour of Radiolo-gical Protected Areas (83750) 

During tours of the Turbine Building, Unit I and Unit 2 Reactor Buildings, Auxiliary 
Building, and Solidification Building, the inspectors reviewed survey data and observed 
activities in progress. Locked High Radiation Areas were controlled as required by 
procedures. Radiological surveys reviewed were well documented and areas observed 
were posted consistent with the survey documentation. The inspectors performed 
independent radiation surveys of selected areas which verified licensee survey results.
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Calibrations for radiation and air sampler instrumentation were current for those 
instruments observed.  

For selected Radiation Work Permits (RWPs) reviewed, the inspectors noted that 
appropriate protective clothing and dosimetry were required. During plant tours 
adherence to the RWP requirements was verified. The inspectors attended briefings for 
Unit 2 outage work and noted that the briefings included the applicable radiological 
control requirements.  

R1.2 Occupational Radiation Exposure Control Program (83750) 

The inspectors reviewed the licensee's implementation of radiation protection principles 
to achieve occupational doses and doses to members of the public As Low As 
Reasonably Achievable (ALARA). Based on discussions and observations, the 
inspectors determined the licensee was maintaining programs for controlling exposures 
ALARA. All internal and external personnel radiation exposures during 1999 were below 
regulatory limits.  

R2 Status of Radiological Protection Facilities and Equipment 

R2.1 Radiologically Controlled Area (RCA) Tour (71750) 

The inspectors toured the RCA and the Unit 2 containment during the refueling outage 
period. Overall cleanliness of the RCA and the containment remained good. Plant 
personnel observed working in the RCA generally demonstrated good knowledge and 
application of radiological control practices. Health physics technicians provided positive 
control and support of work activities in the RCA.  

SI Conduct of Security and Safeguard Activities 

S1.1 Routine Observations of Plant Security Measures (71750) 

The inspectors verified that portions of Site Security Program plan were being properly 
implemented. Disabled vital area doors were properly manned and controlled. Security 
personnel activities observed during the inspection period were well performed. Site 
security systems were adequate to ensure physical protection of the plant. This included 
additional activity during the Unit 2 refueling outage period.  

V. Management Meetings 

X1 Exit Meeting Summary 

The inspectors presented the inspection results to members of licensee management at 
the conclusion of the inspection on November 11, 1999. The licensee acknowledged the 
findings presented.



8 

The inspectors asked the licensee whether any materials examined during the inspection 
should be considered proprietary. No proprietary information was identified.  

Partial List of Persons Contacted

C. L. Buck, Technical Manager 
R. M. Coleman, Outage and Modification Manager 
C. D. Collins, Operations Manager 
K. C. Dyar, Security Manager 
S. Fulmer, Plant Training and Emergency Preparadness Manager 
J. S. Gates, Administration Manager 
D. E. Grissette, Assistant General Manager - Operations 
J. R. Johnson, Maintenance Manager 
R. R. Martin, Engineering Support Manager 
C. D. Nesbitt, Assistant General Manager - Plant Support 
L. M. Stinson, Plant General Manager - FNP 

Items Opened, Closed, and Discussed

Item Number 

50-348, 364/99-07-01

50-348, 364/97-300-01

Description and Reference

Control Room Isolation Radiation Monitor 
RE35A&B Technical Specification Violation 
(Section 01.4) 

Failure to Adequately Train Operators on the Use of 
Procedure Place Keeping Aids (Section 08.1)

Inspection Procedures (IP) Used

IP 37551: 
IP 49001: 
IP 50001: 
IP 60710: 
IP 61726: 
IP 62707: 
IP 71707: 
IP 71750: 
IP 73753: 
IP 83750 
IP 92901: 
TI 2515/141: 
TI 2515/142:

Onsite Engineering 
Flow Accelerated Corrosion 
Steam Generator Replacement 
Refueling Activities 
Surveillance Observations 
Maintenance Observations 
Plant Operation 
Plant Support Activities 
In service Inspection 
Occupational Exposure 
Operations Followup 
Y2K Readiness 
Draindown During Shutdown and Common Mode Failure

Type

Closed

NCV

IFI


